PROCEEDINGS OF THE ROCK COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Janesville, Wisconsin October 11, 2012

The Rock County Board of Supervisors met pursuant to adjournment on October 11, 2012, at 6:00 P.M. in the Courthouse at Janesville, Wisconsin.

Chair Podzilni called the meeting to order. Supervisor Wopat gave the invocation.

 <u>Roll Call</u>. At roll call, Supervisors Peer, Grahn, Beaver, Heidenreich, Mawhinney, Brown, Yankee, Gustina, Bussie, Rundle, Thomas, Knudson, Kraft, Fell, Howland, Sanders, Nash, Brill, Jensen, Wopat, Bostwick, Sweeney, Collins, Owens, Yoss and Podzilni. Supervisors Arnold, Fox and Wiedenfeld were absent. PRESENT –26. ABSENT – 3.

QUORUM PRESENT

4. <u>Adoption of Agenda</u>.

Supervisors Bostwick and Thomas moved to the Agenda as presented. ADOPTED as presented. Agenda is as follows:

- 1. CALL TO ORDER
- 2. INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
- 3. ROLL CALL
- 4. ADOPTION OF AGENDA
- 5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES September 27, 2012
- 6. PUBLIC HEARING
- 7. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION, COMMUNICATIONS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
- 8. NOMINATIONS, APPOINTMENTS AND CONFIRMATION
 - A. Appointment to the Arrowhead Library System Board
- 9. INTRODUCTION OF NEW RESOLUTIONS OR ORDINANCES BY SUPERVISORS FOR REFERRAL TO APPROPRIATE COMMITTEE
- 10. REPORTS
 - A. WI & Southern Railroad Watco/WSOR
- 11. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

1

- 12. NEW BUSINESS
 - A. Supplementary Appropriations and Budget Changes Roll Call
 - Accepting Brownfields Grant to Promote Health Project and Amending the 2012 Rock County Health Department Budget
 - B. Bills Over \$10,000 No Roll Call
 - C. Encumbrances Over \$10,000 Roll Call
 - D. Contracts Roll Call
 - 1. Awarding Contract for Turtle Creek Parkway Building Renovation Project
 - 2. Authorizing Purchase of Televisions for Rock Haven
 - 3. Authorizing Purchase of Four Dell Solid State Server Drives
 - 4. Awarding Contract for Crisis Stabilization Services
 - E. Motion to Reconsider the County Board's action postponing to February 28, 2013, Resolution #12-9B-134
 - F. If item 12.E. passes Designating a Preferred Alternative Route for the CTH G Connector Road

Proceedings of the Rock County Board of Supervisors October 11, 2012

G. Presentation of 2013 Budget – County Administrator

- 13. ADJOURNMENT
- 5. <u>Approval of Minutes of September 27, 2012</u>.

Supervisors Jensen and Rundle moved the approval of the minutes of September 27, 2012 as presented. ADOPTED as presented by acclamation.

7. <u>Citizen Participation, Communications and Announcements.</u>

Dan Cunningham, the Vice President of Forward Janesville, spoke in favor of Item 12.F. He gave several reasons that the Inman Parkway Option B is the fiscally responsible route. It is a safer route and he believes that it will create opportunity to provide economic development. Failure to move forward with the project will result in the forfeiture of millions of dollars of funding from the state.

Charles Haynes, representing the Beloit City Council, spoke in favor of Item 12.F.He was informed that the Board wanted the Town of Turtle and the City of Beloit to meet and come to a mutual agreement prior to moving forward with the project. Meetings have happened and joint resolutions are in place. Mr. Haynes believes that a partnership for the future has been formed and asked the Board to proceed with approving Option B for the Connector route.

Larry Arft, the City Manager of Beloit, spoke in favor of Item 12.F.Mr. Arft reiterated the comments of Mr. Haynes and assured the County Board that the Town of Turtle and City of Beloit has formed a mutual cooperation to discuss the important topics that have been brought up prior. The consensus is that the Option B is the proper route for the project and he urged the Board to move this project forward tonight.

Jackie Otto, Beloit, spoke in opposition on Item 12.F. She doesn't believe it would be right to put such heavy traffic through the proposed route when so many other options exist.

Cheryl Martingilio, Beloit, spoke in opposition on Item 12.F. She is upset that the Inman Parkway route is even an option. She believes Avalon Road would be a better option and the expense is not necessary.

Allen Bank, Beloit, spoke in opposition on Item 12.F. He has resided on Huebbe Parkway for ten years and enjoys the space to play with his grandchildren and believes that the excessive traffic will pose a safety and quality of life risk to his family. He believes this decision is a decision of the almighty dollar and isn't factoring in the affect on human life.

Greg Gaul, Beloit, spoke in favor of Item 12.F. Representing Beloit Health System as the Director of Facilities; Mr. Gaul stated that the organization supports Option B for multiple reasons. The road includes safety and access to health care from surrounding communities, particularly areas north and east of the hospital. The "golden hour" is a critical time in the time of trauma and this route is the best route to utilize time in saving lives in a much more direct and expeditious way. Excellent medical care will be more readily available with this route and he encouraged the Board to move forward tonight with this project selecting Option B.

David Bagley, Janesville, spoke in favor of Item 12.F. Mr. Bagley stated that this project is more than just a connector route; rather it needs to be viewed as a multi-million dollar improvement to multiple areas within the community. It's a safety improvement for those attending Blackhawk Technical College for one, and he echoed the comments of the previous speaker for improving access to quality healthcare. This is a route for economic development and opens the door for future growth. He encouraged the Board to move forward with the project, selecting Option B, in order to not lose the support and funding of the State.

Roger Anclam, Chair of the Town of Turtle, spoke in favor of Item 12.F. Mr. Anclam appreciates the actions of the Board to date and since the actions were taken, multiple agreements and actions have been taken to improve community relations between the Town of Turtle and the City of Beloit. Even though it isn't a perfect result for the Town of Turtle, but after much deliberation, agreed that it would be best for the County and will support Option B. He would encourage the Board to move forward with the project tonight. The resolution was provided to each Board member to show the good will of the two municipalities in forging better relations.

The following citizens did not wish to address the Board, but registered in favor of Item 12.F.; State Assembly Representative Amy Loudenbeck, Steve Kennedy-Janesville, Matt Miller-Beloit, Roger Fleener-Beloit.

Proceedings of the Rock County Board of Supervisors October 11, 2012

The following citizens did not wish to address the Board, but registered in opposition of Item 12.F.; Bruce M. Otto-Beloit, Dan Martin–Beloit, Shane Niman-Beloit, Peter & Bonnie Seach-Beloit.

Margaret Pulera, Darien, addressed the Board regarding the "Curve on Cty M".

Supervisor Brill asked for a moment of silence in memory of Gwendolyn Victoria Garvey of Clinton, who recently passed away. She was an area teacher, a dairy farmer, worked at Blackhawk Tech and retired from the Department of Agriculture. She was a volunteer for Beloit Memorial Hospital and Beloit Regional Hospice. Gwen also was involved with the Town of Clinton Planning and Zoning Committee. She was the organist for many churches over the years including Jefferson Prairie, Clinton United Methodist and Atonement Lutheran Church. She was a valued member of the community and will be missed.

8.A. <u>Appointment to the Arrowhead Library System Board</u>.

Janet Haag 710 Wil-O-Del Court Clinton WI 53525 October 11, 2012

EFFECTIVE DATE:

NEW APPOINTMENT:

Supervisors Bostwick and Owens moved the above appointment. ADOPTED by acclamation.

10.A. WI & Southern Railroad – Watco/WSOR

Ken Lucht thanked Board members, Terry Thomas, Wayne Gustina and Al Sweeney for their continued support of freight rail service in this County and throughout WI and the entire Board for the invitation to report this evening. The entire written report can be viewed in the Rock County Clerk's office at 51 S. Main Street, Janesville, WI 53545.

Ken Lucht, Director of Government Relations for Wisconsin & Southern Railroad explained that a public/private partnership was formed in 1980 under WI Statutes 66.1021 and he shared a system map with the Board that shows WSOR owned or leased tracks and areas where they have trackage rights. Rail Freight has tremendous economic benefits in that one rail car is the equivalent load of four freight trucks. Trains achieve nearly 480 MPG/Ton. Grain Haulers save anywhere between 8 and 12 cents per bushel and fertilizer companies save between 7 and 10 dollars per ton. Shipping via rail can save on highway maintenance by \$12 million annually and currently employs 24,500 people.

Grain was roughly 66% of the total carloads through Rock County in 2011, followed by 17% in the aggregate and 8% in fertilizer. Other commodities include plastic, lumber, chemicals and consumer products.

In 2000, WSOR completed a multi-year plan for system upgrades to 286k capacity – capital and maintenance programs. The plan prioritized system-wide improvements in key areas and required the support of public and private sector rail interest. There was an aggressive tie replacement program and the development of annual continuous welded rail programs. A bridge improvement program based on identified critical conditions also resulted.

Future capital projects include 90,000 new ties in the Prairie Subdivision, installation of 90 miles of continuous weld rail as well. An acquisition of Reedsburg subdivision is also in the project for 2013-2015. This project will require \$90 million in FRPP and funding will be provided via a public private partnership.

12.A.1. Accepting Brownfields to Promote Health Project and Amending the 2012 Rock County

<u>Health Department Budget</u>. Resolution No. 12-10A-141 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Rock County Board of Supervisors duly assembled on this <u>11th</u> day of <u>October</u>, 2012 does hereby authorize the Rock County Health Department to accept this \$148,433 grant from the Agency for Toxic Substances & Disease Registry and amend the 2012 Rock County Health Department Budget as follows:

	Budget At	Increase	Amended
A/C-Description	09/26/2012	(Decrease)	Budget
Source of Funds			-
31-3018-0000-42100	- 0 -	148,433	148,433

Proceedings of the Rock County Board of Supervisors October 11, 2012

 Federal Aid

 <u>Use of Funds</u>

 31-3018-0000-63110
 - 0

 148,433

 Administrative Expense

Supervisors Kraft and Grahn moved the above resolution. ADOPTED on the following roll call vote. Supervisors Peer, Grahn, Beaver, Heidenreich, Mawhinney, Brown, Yankee, Gustina, Bussie, Rundle, Thomas, Knudson, Kraft, Fell, Howland, Sanders, Nash, Brill, Jensen, Wopat, Bostwick, Sweeney, Collins, Owens, Yoss and Podzilni voted in favor. Supervisors Arnold, Fox and Wiedenfeld were absent. AYES – 26. NOES – 0. ABSENT – 3.

12.B. <u>Approval of Bills Over \$10,000.00</u>. Resolution No. 12-10A-142 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Rock County Board of Supervisors at its regular meeting on <u>October 11, 2012</u>, approves payment and authorizes and directs the County Clerk and County Treasurer to pay the same.

Baycom Inc. Information Technology **Contracted Services** \$22,752.00 Enterprise Systems Corp. General Services Contracted Services \$74,543.55 Park Place Technologies Information Technology **Contracted Services** \$12,132.00 Pictometry Internat'l. Corp. Information Technology **Contracted Services** \$14,599.00 Quality Door & Hardware General Services **Contracted Services** \$16,516.00

Supervisors Mawhinney and Kraft moved the above resolution. ADOPTED by acclamation.

12.C. Approval of Encumbrances Over \$10,000.00. Resolution No. 12-10A-143 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Rock County Board of Supervisors at its regular meeting on October 11, 2012, approves payment and authorizes and directs the County Clerk and County Treasurer to pay the same, upon acceptance by the department head. Best Buv General Services Contracted Services \$106.598.22 Draeving Construction Inc. Public Works Contracted Services \$67,125.00 Supervisors Mawhinney and Peer moved the above resolution. ADOPTED on the following roll call vote. Supervisors Peer, Grahn, Beaver, Heidenreich, Mawhinney, Brown, Yankee, Gustina, Bussie, Rundle, Thomas, Knudson, Kraft, Fell, Howland, Sanders, Nash, Brill, Jensen, Wopat, Bostwick, Sweeney, Collins, Owens, Yoss and Podzilni voted in favor. Supervisors Arnold, Fox and Wiedenfeld were absent. AYES – 26. NOES – 0. ABSENT – 3.

12.D.1. <u>Awarding Contract for Turtle Creek Parkway Building Renovation Project</u>. Resolution No. 12-10A-144

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Rock County Board of Supervisors duly assembled on this <u>11th</u> day of <u>October</u>, 2012 issue a Purchase Order to Draeving Construction Inc. of Beloit, Wisconsin, to lowest responsible bidder, in the amount of \$67,125 to perform the building renovations at Turtle Creek Park.

Supervisors Yankee and Bussie moved the above resolution. ADOPTED on the following roll call vote. Supervisors Peer, Grahn, Beaver, Heidenreich, Mawhinney, Brown, Yankee, Gustina, Bussie, Rundle, Thomas, Knudson, Kraft, Fell, Howland, Sanders, Nash, Brill, Jensen, Wopat, Bostwick, Sweeney, Collins, Owens, Yoss and Podzilni voted in favor. Supervisors Arnold, Fox and Wiedenfeld were absent. AYES – 26. NOES – 0. ABSENT – 3.

12.D.2. <u>Authorizing Purchase of Televisions for Rock Haven</u>. Resolution No. 12-10A-145 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Rock County Board of Supervisors duly assembled this <u>11th</u> day of <u>October</u>, 2012 does hereby recommend that a Purchase Order be issued to Best Buy, Richfield, Minnesota for up to \$106,598.22 for the purchase of TV's, mounts, remote controls and cables for Rock Haven.

Supervisors Owens and Yoss moved the above resolution. ADOPTED on the following roll call vote. Supervisors Peer, Grahn, Beaver, Heidenreich, Mawhinney, Brown, Yankee, Gustina, Bussie, Rundle, Thomas, Knudson, Kraft, Fell, Howland, Sanders, Nash, Brill, Jensen,

Proceedings of the Rock County Board of Supervisors October 11, 2012

Wopat, Bostwick, Sweeney, Collins, Owens, Yoss and Podzilni voted in favor. Supervisors Arnold, Fox and Wiedenfeld were absent. AYES – 26. NOES – 0. ABSENT – 3.

12.D.3. Authorizing Purchase of Four Dell Solid State Server Drives.

Resolution No. 12-10A-146

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Rock County Board of Supervisors duly assembled this <u>11th</u> day of <u>October</u>, 2012 that a Purchase Order for four solid state service drives is issued to Dell, Inc. in the amount of \$26,390.76.

Supervisors Mawhinney and Kraft moved the above resolution. ADOPTED on the following roll call vote. Supervisors Peer, Grahn, Beaver, Heidenreich, Mawhinney, Brown, Yankee, Gustina, Bussie, Rundle, Thomas, Knudson, Kraft, Fell, Howland, Sanders, Nash, Brill, Jensen, Wopat, Bostwick, Sweeney, Collins, Owens, Yoss and Podzilni voted in favor. Supervisors Arnold, Fox and Wiedenfeld were absent. AYES – 26. NOES – 0. ABSENT – 3.

12.D.4. <u>Awarding Contract Crisis Stabilization Services</u>. Resolution No. 12-10A-147 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Rock County Board of Supervisors duly assembled this <u>11th</u> day of <u>October</u>, 2012 that a contract for residential crisis stabilization services commencing January 1, 2013, be awarded to Rock Valley Community Programs of Janesville, Wisconsin in the amount of \$835,929 based on the terms and conditions set forth in the contract; and,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that it be a three year contract with an option for three, one-year annual extension upon the approval of the Human Services Board.

Supervisors Knudson and Wopat moved the above resolution. ADOPTED on the following roll call vote. Supervisors Peer, Grahn, Beaver, Heidenreich, Mawhinney, Brown, Yankee, Gustina, Bussie, Rundle, Thomas, Knudson, Kraft, Fell, Howland, Sanders, Nash, Brill, Jensen, Wopat, Bostwick, Sweeney, Collins, Owens, Yoss and Podzilni voted in favor. Supervisors Arnold, Fox and Wiedenfeld were absent. AYES – 26. NOES – 0. ABSENT – 3.

12.E. <u>Motion to Reconsider the County Board's action postponing to February 28, 2013,</u> <u>Resolution No. 12-9B-134</u>.

Supervisors Collins and Brown moved to reconsider the County Board's action postponing resolution #12-9B-134. ADOPTED by acclamation.

12.F. <u>If item 12.E. passes – Designating a Preferred Alternative Route for the CTH G</u> Connector Road. Res. No. 12-9B-134

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Rock County Board of Supervisors duly assembled this <u>11th</u> day of <u>October</u>, 2012 accepts the recommendation of the Pubic Works Committee and designates the "Inman Parkway Extension (Alternate B in the studies)" to be the preferred alternative for the project route; and,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Department of Public Works shall proceed with completion of the environmental document for the project and submit that document for concurrence by the State and Federal Highway Departments; and once approved proceed with final design of the project.

Supervisors Yankee and Rundle moved the above resolution. ADOPTED on the following roll call vote. Supervisors Peer, Grahn, Beaver, Heidenreich, Mawhinney, Brown, Yankee, Bussie, Rundle, Thomas, Knudson, Kraft, Fell, Howland, Sanders, Nash, Jensen, Wopat, Bostwick, Sweeney, Collins, Owens, Yoss and Podzilni voted in favor. Supervisors Gustina and Brill voted against. Supervisors Arnold, Fox and Wiedenfeld were absent. AYES – 24. NOES – 2. ABSENT – 3.

12.G. Presentation of 2013 Budget – County Administrator.

Honorable Chair, Vice Chair, and Members of the Rock County Board of Supervisors. 2012 is the first full year local governments are subject to the provisions of Act 10 as well as new more stringent tax levy limits. The new limits allow the tax levy for operational expenditures to increase by 0% or whatever the increase in net new construction may be. This very strict levy limit became effective at a time when service demand continues to increase throughout the programs the County is mandated to provide.

For example, the increasing demand for mental health services is reflected by data from the Crisis Unit which shows Crisis contacts increasing 27% from 2011 to 2012. Rock County's Economic Support caseload has increased from 15,200 cases in July 2011 to 21,372 cases in July 2012. In addition, the number of child abuse or neglect reports made to Child Protective Service has been increasing.

The way Rock County has been able to survive without drastically reducing service levels has been to continually strive to change operations to become more effective. This involves examining operations and implementing proven best practices.

Examples exist in the Human Services Department in many of the divisions and programs. Changes in Juvenile Justice, Mental Health and Child Protective Services programs have allowed those areas to reduce out of home placement costs for both children and adults despite increasing caseloads. These reduced out of home placement costs have enabled the Department to cover cost increases in other areas with very little impact on the tax levy.

Everyone is aware of the success of the diversion programs run by the Sheriff's Office. In September 2012 there were 584 inmates under the Sheriff's control but only 442 actually housed in the Jail. The other 142 were involved in either electronic monitoring, the Workender Program or Community Recap/Drug Court. Without the diversion programs, the Jail would be over capacity and we would again be shipping prisoners to other counties.

Rock Haven has been reducing the property tax subsidy for several years. This is occurring again in 2013 with the move to the new facility and the further efficiencies it will provide.

The above are but a few examples; others could be cited as well. I believe it is important to recognize and commend the many dedicated, smart and hard working county employees who put their heart and soul into what they do to serve the citizens of Rock County.

The budget I submit to you for 2013 contains \$180,743,683 in total expenditures. This is an increase of \$5,488,057 or 3.13%.

The recommended property tax levy of \$61,114,210 is \$940,990 or 1.56% higher than the prior year. On average, this will raise the County portion of the property tax bill by \$9.15 on a property valued at \$100,000.

The tax levy increase is within the tax levy limits as imposed by the State of Wisconsin. It is comprised of three parts.

Those parts are the amount allowed under the State imposed levy limits for operational costs; the amount for items funded by limited tax levies which are exempt from levy limits; and the amount needed for debt service. These amounts and percentages are as follows:

Levy Change for Operations	\$511,159	0.85%
Levy Change for Limited Levies	(26,292)	(0.04%)
Levy Change for Debt Service	456,123	0.75%
	\$940,990	1.56%

The levy for operations is allowed to increase by 0% or the increase in net new construction. Rock County's net new construction went up by approximately .89% from 2011 to 2012. Our current estimate is this would allow an increase of approximately \$556,000 in additional property tax levy. Unfortunately, as of earlier this week the State had not made available the information to precisely calculate this figure. It was supposed to be available September 14. Therefore, the actual allowable increase may be somewhat more or less than \$556,000. To stay on the safe side, I have recommended an increase of \$511,159.

The decrease of \$26,292 is in the portion of the levy which is exempt from levy limits. It consists of a levy decrease of \$31,292 for the Arrowhead Library System and an increase of \$5,000 for Town Bridge Aid. The Arrowhead levy is levied on property in the towns plus the Village of Footville while the levy for Town Bridge Aid is levied on property in the towns.

The levy increase for debt service of \$456,123 is the amount needed to meet the County's obligations for debt which has been issued.

In addition to tax levy limits, the County is also subject to State imposed tax rate limits. Tax rate limits were enacted in the early 1990s. They require that a county not exceed the tax rate adopted in 1992, which funded the 1993 Budget. This did not impact most counties as property values rose at a rate equal to or greater than tax levies through the 1990s and continued

until the recession. Property values fell in 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011 in many counties including Rock County. As property value (equalized value) falls, it takes a higher tax rate to raise the same amount of revenue (tax levy). Recognizing the problem this could cause counties who are already subjected to the levy limits, the State suspended the tax rate cap for operational levies for the 2012 and 2013 budget years.

If tax rate limits go back into effect for 2014, they could cause problems for Rock County as well as a number of other counties. Current estimates are that property values (equalized value) in Rock County will have to increase approximately 2% during 2012 to allow Rock County to maintain the operational levy at the level recommended in the 2013 Budget. A 0% increase in property value in 2012 would require Rock County to decrease the levy for operational costs by \$1,060,000 in the 2014 Budget. This would have a serious impact on the ability of the County to maintain service levels.

Total expenditures included in the 2013 Budget are recommended to increase by \$5,488,057 or 3.13%. The budget for operational expenditures is recommended to increase by \$3,686,193 or 2.24%. Debt service is up \$496,169 while Capital Outlay is up \$1,305,695.

The majority of the increase in operational expenditures is a result of State funded program initiatives in the Human Services Department. In early 2012 Rock County became the lead agency for the Economic Support Consortium for the Southern Region. This added \$2.4 million of pass-through funds to the County Budget. These funds are paid to the other six counties in the consortium. In addition, start up and operation of the ADRC adds close to \$1.6 million (including renovation costs) to the 2013 budget. These items are somewhat offset by the loss of \$1.6 million of funding for the W-2 Program. The net of these program changes adds \$2.4 million to the operational budget alone.

Rock County's estimated General Fund balance as of December 31, 2012 is \$28,277,122. After reserving a portion of this balance for delinquent taxes and other receivables, the expected December 31, 2012 Unassigned General Fund balance is \$21,522,343. This compares to an audited Unassigned General Fund balance of \$19,865,358 as of December 31, 2011. This is an acceptable level for financial reserves. However, given the uncertain state of the economy and the state's unreliability when it comes to funding its mandates I have recommended no General Fund application for 2013.

The County Sales Tax was adopted as part of the 2007 Budget process and became effective April 1, 2007. The 2012 Budget included \$9,700,000 in sales tax revenue to be used as follows:

\$7,522,973	Operational Costs
<u>\$2,177,027</u>	Capital Expenditures
\$9,700.000	

Currently Rock County recognizes cash received in January as part of the previous year's sales tax collection. Our auditors have recommended cash received through February also be recognized as part of the prior years collections. Following the auditors recommendation would mean sales taxes received through February 2014 would be recognized as 2013 revenue. Making this adjustment would result in 13 months of collections being recognized in 2013. I have recommended this and included the additional \$720,883, with all of it directed to capital expenditures. Therefore, I have included a total of \$10,420,883 in sales tax revenue in the 2013 Budget to be used as follows:

\$ 7,522,973	Operational Costs
<u>2,897,910</u>	Capital Expenditures
\$10,420,883	

The amount recommended for Operational Costs is at the same level as both 2011 and 2012. The amount designated for Capital Expenditures is for a variety of construction projects, equipment and software I would otherwise recommend be funded through deferred financing. **Points of Interest**

A major initiative included in the 2013 Budget is the establishment of an Aging and Disability Resource Center (ADRC). Organizationally it will be in the Human Services Department. Physically it will be located in renovated space in the Job Center. The State will provide the funds for operation as well as renovation of office space. A total of 14 new positions will be created to staff the ADRC. The ADRC will be a "one stop shop" for people to go to acquire information on services and programs for the elderly and individuals with physical or developmental disabilities.

The Rock County ADRC will operate with the MA Waiver programs currently run through both the Long Term Support Division of the Human Services Department and the Developmental Disabilities Board. Whether Rock County goes to Family Care will be a decision made at a future point in time.

- 2) One of the exciting transitions which will occur in 2013 is the move into the new Rock Haven facility. The new Rock Haven is nearing completion. Given the time which will be required to finish installing equipment and train staff it is estimated that residents will move in mid-March 2013.
- 3) Act 10 required all public employees (other than sworn law enforcement) to pay half of the required Wisconsin Retirement Systems contribution. This went into effect for unrepresented County employees in August 2011 and represented County employees January 1, 2012. For general employees in 2012, the County pays an amount equal to 5.9% of wages and the employee pays a like amount. The rate is increasing in 2013 to 6.65% of wages for both the employee and the County.

Despite the various challenges currently before the Courts, the 2013 Budget assumes employees will continue paying into the Wisconsin Retirement System.

4) The Budget for the Developmental Disabilities program includes one of the largest tax levy increases in the 2013 Budget. The recommended property tax levy increase is \$177,467 or 4.8%. In addition, the responsibility for providing \$102,000 of match money for the Children's Long Term Waiver (CLTW) program was transferred to the Human Services Department. Without this transfer the tax levy increase would have been \$279,467 or 7.6%. This is in the context of State Law which limits Rock County's 2013 tax levy increase for operational costs to .89%.

Despite the requested increase, Mr. Hanewall has had to recommend some actions which will reduce funding to some agencies. These reductions may not be well received but must be considered in the context of the County Budget as a whole.

5) One of the issues which must soon be addressed is Courthouse Security. The current system includes electronics such as cameras, alarms, recording capability and door controls which are soon to be 17 years old. The technology is obsolete and becoming difficult to repair. We also need to take a look at Courthouse security as a whole and whether it should be extended.

Replacing the security electronics and making other improvements could be an expensive undertaking. I have placed \$550,000 of sales tax revenue in the 2013 Budget to provide funds for technical assistance as well as purchasing equipment and funding facility upgrades. Whether this will be sufficient to fund the project remains to be seen.

- 6) Another major capital project included in the 2013 Budget is the replacement of the 9-1-1 Telephone System. The current system was installed in 2005 and is reaching the end of its useful life. The budgeted cost for a new system is \$620,000. Sales tax is recommended as the funding source for this purchase.
- 7) The 2013 Budget includes the transfer of the Emergency Management function into the Sheriff's Office. With the retirement of long time Emergency Management Coordinator, Shirley Connors, Sheriff Spoden and I examined the pros and cons of doing this. Among the advantages is the Sheriff's Office will provide a "deeper bench" than is available in a two person office and the proposal will save approximately \$91,000 in tax levy.

A staff person in the Sheriff's Office will be appointed as the full time Emergency Management Coordinator. The clerical position in the Office will be retained and the offices will continue to be physically located in the Health Care Center. All of the functions currently being performed by Ms. Connors for all of the first responder agencies will continue to be performed under the new organizational structure. A number of counties, including Walworth and Kenosha, function in this manner.

8) The 2013 Budget contains a total of \$3,698,500 of deferred financing. All of the deferred financing is devoted to road projects. \$2,508,500 will be used for the regular road construction programs. This will fund 3.25 miles of CTH "M" reconstruction, which is the

continuation of the multi-year project to reconstruct 11 miles of "M" from Milton to USH "14". Also included is a 1.25 mile segment of CTH "A" from CTH "H" to Britt Road.

The other \$1,190,000 of deferred financing includes \$55,000 for further design work on the CTH "F" project along with \$1,135,000 for items connected to the CTH "G" project.

- 9) Personnel actions recommended in the 2013 Budget result in a net increase of 1.9 full time equivalent positions. The establishment of the ADRC in 2013 includes the creation of 14 positions. Without the establishment of the ADRC, the number of positions would have decreased by 12.1 FTEs. The 2013 recommended personnel roster includes 1,161.75 positions. Since 2000, Rock County will have reduced its workforce by 277.45 positions or 19.3%.
- 10) Outstanding debt at the end of 2012 will total \$43,485,000.

The Administrator's Letter, which is found near the front of your budget document, contains additional budget information. Also, each departmental budget contains "Administrator's Comments" which summarize the important points in each departmental budget. The timetable for budget consideration includes:

9:00 A.M.	Monday, November 5	County Administrator's Review and Explanation of the Budget with
6:00 P.M.	Wednesday, November 7	Questions from the Board Public Hearing on the Budget
9:00 A.M.	Tuesday, November 13	Statutory Annual Meeting and
		Budget Adoption

As you review the 2013 Budget the staff and I are ready to assist you and answer your questions. Please feel free to contact us with whatever questions you may have. Sincerely,

Craig Knutson, County Administrator

13. <u>Adjournment</u>.

Supervisors Bostwick and Thomas moved to adjourn at 8:04pm to Thursday, October 25, 2012 at 6:00 P.M. ADOPTED by acclamation.

Prepared by Lorena R. Stottler, County Clerk NOT OFFICIAL UNTIL APPROVED BY THE COUNTY BOARD.